
 
 
 

 
 
 

      
   27 June 2016 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 5 July 2016 

beginning at 
10:30 am 

in 
Bursledon Windmill, Windmill Lane, Bursledon, SO31 8BG 

 
TO: Councillors A Broadhurst, Cross and Van Niekerk 
 County Councillors Grajewski, House and Kyrle 
 Mr Jackson and Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 Parish Councillors Mrs Andrewes and McCormick 
 Diccon Bright, Area Co-ordinator  
 Cerian Trevan, Christine Taylor and Tim Kelly,Hampshire Cultural Trust  
   
  
Staff Contact: Amy Thorne, Democratic Services Officer  

Tel: 023 8068 8361, 
Email:amy.thorne@eastleigh.gov.uk  

   
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
3. Curator's Report    (Pages 7 - 14) 
 
4. Finance Report    (Pages 15 - 22) 
 
5. Business Plan Update    (Pages 23 - 28) 
 
6. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 
 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 23 February 2016  (12:00 pm – 1:25 pm) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - CouncillorsA Broadhurst, Van 
Niekerk, Cross, House and GrajewskiParish Councillor Cross 
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Grajewski and House 
(Chairman) 
 
Representing Bursledon Parish Council – Councillor Andrewes 
 

 Councillor Diane Andrewes - Bursledon Parish Council
 Mrs Sutton - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
 Tim Kelly - Hampshire Cultural Trust
 Janet Wildman - Hampshire Cultural Trust
 Erica Munro - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
 Diccon Bright - Local Area Co-ordinator 

 
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor Kyrle, Parish 
Councillor Mark McCormick and Mr Jackson 
 

1. MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 10 NOVEMBER 2015 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 10 November 2015 were agreed as a 

correct record. 
 
Matters arising from the Minutes were as follows: 
 
Minute 2 Curator’s Report – Erica Munro advised that the building works on 
the toilet block had started and they were now partially built.  
 
A query was raised on the progress with the tree survey on the site. Tim 
Kelly advised that it was a complex issue due to landownership and the 
survey had not yet taken place. Diccon Bright advised that some work had 
been done by the Borough Council’s tree team and a plan was put in place 
to clear low level vegetation. They had advised that to reduce a substantial 
amount of trees would not create more wind or be of any ecological benefit. 
Diccon suggested that he meet with Erica on site to identify key trees to 
review and perhaps remove. It was agreed that a Sunday would be best as 
the miller would be on site and he was a qualified tree surgeon. 
 
Tim Kelly announced that both Erica and Janet would be leaving the trust. 
Janet was retiring but would continue to work with the trust in some 
capacity. Erica was moving on to be the Exhibitions Manager at Bletchley 
Park and would be replaced. The meeting wished them both good luck in 
their new ventures. 

 

1

Agenda Item 2



 

 

2. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 The Curator introduced a report detailing activities and events at the 

Windmill since the last meeting.  
 
The winter period at Bursledon Windmill was always a much quieter time 
than in the previous months, with storms, cold and heavy rain greatly 
affecting the number of visitors and potential for activity due to the outdoor 
and rural nature of the Windmill site. However, this had given staff a chance 
to focus on maintenance, training, programming and planning. The 
automaton donations box had been repaired by its designer, and the older 
interactive windmill model had been painted, fixed and moved to a more 
prominent place in the Barn, making a better use of the raised platform. 
 
A volunteer milling training day took place in December. Despite 
expectations, the wind did blow but two volunteers were unable to attend at 
short notice, so the training went ahead with two staff members and one 
volunteer. A formal training programme and record book had been 
developed by site staff which reflected the Operating Manual, and gave a 
valuable record for both trainee and managers on how much the new 
volunteers have learned. Over the next year, this training system would be 
rolled out to volunteers, with another two recruited over this winter period. 
The Curator attended food hygiene training in order to better manage the 
cleaning schedules and food safety requirements of the site. 
 
Progress had been made with plans for the toilet block, safety 
improvements to the inside of the windmill cap and external lightning 
protection. Building work for the toilet block began 1 February with no 
interference to usual site operations. Neighbours had been kept fully 
informed by both venue staff and the contractors. 

Funding had recently been secured via the TESCO Bags of Help scheme in 

order to improve and maintain the outdoor areas of the site which it was 

hoped to include  the pond, boundary hedges and car park. 

Visitor figures throughout the year had shown a trend upwards but the 
period November to February was very low. A very wet winter with high 
winds had meant few visitors, particularly in December. Special events, out 
of hours visits and school visits in August and October led to higher visitor 
figures than in previous years. Comparison to the previous year was 
unhelpful, as the reopening at the end of November 2014 created an 
artificially high baseline and, prior to that, admission was free so it was 
difficult to compare like for like. Attention to maintenance, staff training and 
cleaning have benefited from the lower visitor numbers and more 
volunteer/staff time.  
 
The business case for opening less in the winter and more in the summer 
was currently under review with a decision anticipated in time for the next 
summer period. A number of events had been programmed in order to 
attract larger numbers throughout the forthcoming year, including a wood-

2



 

 

themed arts and crafts festival, a ‘Hogs, Cogs and Kegs’ food and drink 
event, an Easter animal petting farm, specially themed activities for National 
Mills Weekend and National Science Week and the ever-popular summer 
pizza day. 
 
The Hampshire Cultural Trust Collections Development Policy 2015-2020, 
was launched in October and was now available on the Trust website. The 
policy guided decisions relating to the acquisition and disposal of objects 
relating to Eastleigh Borough, as a well as other parts of the County. It was 
written soon after the Trust was formed and had now been formally 
approved by the Board of Trustees and both Hampshire County Council and 
Winchester City Council as owners or trustees of the collections. The policy 
was one of a suite of documents that all museums were required to have to 
retain their Museum Accreditation. Bursledon Windmill was last awarded 
Full Accreditation in 2013. The Trust would be invited to provide evidence 
that the Windmill continues to comply with the Accreditation Standard in 
October 2016 with a submission deadline of 30 April 2017. 

In October the Community Engagement and Learning Officer (CELO) 
worked with 118 school pupils in 5 school groups. Schools tended not to 
visit between October Half Term and February Half Term due to the cold 
and wet, but the CELO had enquiries for March visits. Feedback had been 
received from teachers and was very positive. Several enquiries had 
resulted in no bookings when the teachers realised that the children would 
be experiencing a static windmill. It was hoped that work towards a position 
where the windmill could operate on several weekdays in September and 
October could be progressed as this would be when schools were doing 
their harvest topic. 
 
The Front of House team had added to the Community Engagement and 
Learning offer with Special Sunday activities for families – all about Cogs 
and Gears in October, Hibernation in November, the Twelve Days of 
Christmas in December, and Winter Wildlife in January. They had also 
planned and delivered the Half Term Hoot of Owls workshop science 
activities, with a volunteer doing the art activities. The CELO planned the 
Mill by Torchlight event and ran it along with the Curator, Front of House 
team and volunteers.  Although numbers attending the Mill by Torchlight 
evening were disappointing, it was a wonderful atmospheric event and an 
innovative way of telling a heritage story. It was hoped that the event could 
be run again with a marketing campaign targeting schools earlier in the run-
up to the event. 
 
The Hoot of Owls event had the opposite problem – it was at times too 
crowded for comfort, because there was so much to do that the first arrivals 
were still there as more and more families poured in. A new on-line booking 
system should help to limit numbers and to ensure attendance before 
committing to going ahead with an event, and would allow for more booked 
events and fewer drop-ins. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

3



 

 

 
3. VENUE PLAN 
 
 Erica Munro, Curator, went through the Venue Plan in detail, highlighting 

that the Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT) championed world-class culture 
and exhibits to showcase, connect and empower Hampshire’s creative 
economy. This independent charity worked collaboratively to bring 
organisations, people and ideas together for greater impact. It was an 
exciting time for culture in the country and delivering against these key 
objectives would ensure that the HCT and individual venues like Bursledon 
Windmill would continue to contribute to the overarching strategic framework 
of the primary funders. 
 
Erica Munro handed over to Janet Wildman (HCT) who had been 
developing areas for the Plan. Janet went through the various headings 
explaining how the venue plan would evolve. It was divided into a number of 
key actions including: Public Programmes; Community Learning and 
Engagement; Collections; Local Priorities; Business Development; and 
Venue Management, with sub headings linked to HCT goals and Eastleigh 
Borough Council outcomes as set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
Members felt that the windmill would be helped by the actual production of 
flour which meant people could take a bag of flour home after a tour. Erica 
agreed that it was frustrating that this was not happening yet but advised 
that it would depend on the outcome of the maintenance, training of 
volunteers and certification for food production; as to how quickly this would 
happen. 
 
It was AGREED that the Venue Plan be noted. 

 
4. BUDGET REPORT 
 
 Tim Kelly, Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT) advised that the report provided 

an update on the 2015/16 budget up to the end of December 2015. There 
were no variations to note and the end of year would be 31 March 2016. A 
breakdown of the budget was provided in Appendix 1 to the report, and the 
headlines reflected those in the Venue Plan, which made it easier to 
understand where money was being spent and how the windmill directly 
benefitted. 
 
It was AGREED that the 2015/16 budget update be noted. 

 
5. SCHOOLS' SERVICE UPDATE 
 
 Janet Wildman, the Community Engagement and Learning Officer (CELO), 

introduced her report which updated Members on the Schools’ Service at 
Bursledon Windmill. 
 
She advised that it was mainly primary schools that had become target 
users of the windmill as the secondary schools had larger year groups that 

4



 

 

could not be accommodated on the site. Schools would only make a visit 
outside of the classroom – or book a workshop in the school – if it helped 
deliver the requirements of the new Primary National Curriculum, so the 
process of devising, promoting and delivering an offer for schools began 
with linking those areas of the National Curriculum with subject matter at the 
windmill.  
 
The site only had two schools within walking distance so schools had to add 
travelling to the cost of the trip. With the weather conditions and size of the 
windmill along with the lack of facilities it became quite problematic for 
running school visits. The main reason for schools not visiting was due to 
the windmill not being in service.  
 
Bursledon Infant School was the most consistent visitor to the windmill, 
visiting every year for the Little Red workshop with Year 1. The other local 
school to visit regularly was Freegrounds Junior, to take part in the Flour 
Power workshop every year with Year 3. There were several other schools 
that made regular bookings from within Hampshire, mainly for the Harvest 
time topics. 
 
The majority of the visits were made in the autumn term each year, in 
particular the Little Red Hen and Flour Power sessions. There were no 
bookings for the geography session and none for the history of the site. 
Therefore the main bookings were for the occasional handwriting workshops 
and the grain chain sessions. 
 
As well as planning and delivering the schools offer, the CELO provided or 
helped the Curator to plan for a range of other activities for non-school 
audiences with events such as Windmill Wednesdays; ‘A Hoot of Owls’, the 
‘Great Bursledon Bake Off’ and Easter’s ‘Spring into Action’; Special 
Sundays – ‘Winter Wildlife Trails’ and ‘Cogs and Gears’ ‘Hampshire Harvest 
at the Windmill’; and other Special Events. 
 
Members welcomed the update and were delighted that the windmill 
assisted with the education of young people in the Borough. The Chair 
thanked Janet Wildman for a very informative report. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
6. RESTORATION OF BURSLEDON WINDMILL 
 
 Consideration was given to the Restoration of Bursledon Windmill Report 

which updated Members on the progress with the maintenance of the mill 
and outbuildings.  
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
7. BURSLEDON WINDMILL BUSINESS PLAN 
 
 Tim Kelly advised that due to future funding cuts to the windmill, Hampshire 

5



 

 

Cultural Trust (HCT) felt that the future funding for the windmill was 
dependent primarily on the trust’s overarching fundraising plans, as the 
return on investment from more global plans was likely to be more 
significant.  
 
In order to manage the reduced funding the Trust had planned to broaden 
its funding base towards providing a sustainable way forward. Currently the 
trust was working on broadening funding via: Corporate Partners and 
Ambassadors, Better Life Chances, Happenings and Trusts and 
Foundations; Donations and Gift Aid and Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy. 
There were also local plans in place including; volunteer development and 
milling. 
 
In conclusion Tim advised that the windmill would continue to be supported 
by HCT, however it was important to recognise that ongoing support would 
be enabled by wider trust strategies for future funding. 
 
Councillor Van Niekerk advised that it was encouraging to receive more 
information and on behalf of Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local 
Area Committee (BHH LAC), it had addressed the concerns they had. She 
was happy to report that there had been enough progress made that funding 
could be released on the proviso that it would come back to the June 2016 
meeting for further discussion on the future funding of the project. Tim Kelly 
advised that they could be completely transparent and would happily share 
any information that was sought. 
 
Diccon Bright advised that after the meeting he would work with BHH LAC 
to establish what further information was required before June 2016. 
 
It was AGREED that the progress be noted. 
 

 
8. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was AGREED that the next meeting would be held at the Windmill, 

Windmill Lane, Bursledon on Tuesday 5 July at 10.30 am. 
 
M5619 

6



 
 

  
  

Committee: BURSLEDON WINDMILL 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 5 July 2016 

Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: Christine Taylor 

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  
 
 
1  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Site 
 

1.1 Windmill Service Delivery 
 
The Curator, Erica Munro, left the Hampshire Cultural Trust for a new position at the end 
of March. The role has been covered in the interim by Christine Taylor, Curator of Natural 
Sciences. Interviews have taken place and Cerian Trevan has been appointed. She 
started her new role with the Hampshire Cultural Trust on 20 June 2016 and joins us from 
Stonehenge. 
 
The absence of a VSA, who left in January, has meant that the site had not been cleaned 
as regularly or as thoroughly usual. The mill has been covered by casual staff who have 
acted as Duty Manager. 
 
The interim area Curator has worked with a volunteer and the miller to clean the interior of 
the mill, clear some of the pond, clear the paths of weeds leading up to the windmill and 
strim the edges beside the windmill.  
 
Interviews for a part time VSA for the windmill have taken place and Jeff Witchett started 
at the windmill on 20 May. 
 
The number of volunteers had dwindled to one regular person and a garden volunteer in 
recent months. The interim area curator has contacted all of the volunteers on the list to 
see if they were still keen to help and all have replied to say that there are. They were also 
asked if they would be willing to help with occasional ‘cleaning blitz’s’ and most have said 
that they would help if they are available. A new volunteer is in the process of being added 
to the team. 
 
The new outbuilding comprising the visitors’ toilets and volunteer’s room have now been 
completed providing much improved facilities. The improvements to the inside of the 
windmill cap (hand rails so that the cap can be accessed more easily and safely); the 
installation of a lightning conductor on the exterior of the mill and signage for disabled car 
parking were completed at the end of April. The Operations Manual has been received and 
signed off. 
 
 
 
 

Report on activities at or relating to Bursledon Windmill 
Covering period March 2016 – June 2016 

7

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The automaton donations box which had been repaired by its designer broke down again. 
This has been repaired by members of the Conservation Team. The Conservation team 
have also recently (22 June) fitted a new Governor’s belt. 
  
 

Funding (£10,000) has recently been secured via the 

TESCO Bags of Help scheme. It is anticipated that the 

entrance fence will replaced, perimeter fences to be 

repaired re-using good pieces of the entrance fence, two 

large sleepers with a kick board will define the edges of the 

pond and allow wheelchair access and two external lights 

on the Chineham Barn for evening events. 

 

 

 

After Storm Katie violently hit the South of England at the end March it was discovered that 

the brake which stops the sails going round, had failed and that a bolt needed urgent 

replacement. The emergency call out procedure was actioned and Gary (the miller) and a 

member of the Conservation team were able to repair the damage.  

Installation of the lightning 
conductor (left) and the governor 
belt (above) 

8



 
 

April and May were busy with various yearly checks – Fire alarms and Legionella testing. 

Regular bait traps checks are also being carried out. 

One of the aims for this year was to set the sails to grind wheat and make flour. For 
several weeks the staff at the mill had been watching the weather forecast and had a 
couple of abortive attempts when the forecast wind didn’t arrive. The sails on the mill have 
finally been turned to make flour – the first time in 5 years! Gary Freeman, the Miller, has 
sourced a supplier for grain and we are just getting costings. 
 

1.2 Visitor Figures 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 
2011 – 
2012 

581 645 389 435 408 244 261 258 86 159 227 173 3866 

 
2012 – 
2013 

385 285 227 251 332 316 433 253 188 62 228 364 3314 

 
2013 – 
2014 

252 299 278 388 489 784 275 215 95 85 227 332 3719 

2014 – 
2015  

252 422 318 362 0 121 90 290 72 390 332 503 3152 

2015-
2016 

298 383 315 282 563 274 431 129 24 109 142 263 3213 

2016-
2017 

170             

 
It is hoped that visitor figures will start to pick up now the mill has started to grind grain. 
Special events and out of hours visits have been planned which will help to increase 
numbers. The appointment of a new VSA means that there is a member of staff to assist 
with out of hour’s events and planning with events.   
 
From July – September the Windmill will be opening on Saturdays as well as Sundays and 
it is hoped that the additional day will draw visitors, especially if the sails of the mill are 
rotating. The plan is then to close the mill in the quiet months of November, December and 
January, when it is hard to attract visitors, except for specific events. There may be scope 
for a special Christmas event to be run. The miller and VSA will come in during the winter 
to keep a check on the site. 
 
 
A number of events have been planned for the summer months: 
Special Sundays  
 

 15 May ‘Flour Power’ as part of National Mills Weekend 

 12 June ‘Strawberry Sunday’ 

 10 July ‘Get Busy’ 
 
Minibeasts at the Mill – 1 June 
Half term Windmill Wednesday for families is with Natural Selection Learning. Activities 
include making a pooter, ready for a minibeast safari. 

9



 
 

 
Ways with Wood – 30 & 31 July 
A two day festival celebrating woodcrafts, featuring all day workshops and family drop in 
activities. 
 
The Great Bursledon Bake Off – 17 August 
Summer holiday Windmill Wednesday for families. Making pizzas in the bread oven. 
 
 
2   Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge 
and Advice 
 
2.1 Caring for collections  
The Hampshire Cultural Trust’s Emergency Conservation Unit came to the rescue on the 
Bank Holiday Monday to carryout repairs to the windmill following the storm on Easter 
Sunday. A bolt within the braking mechanism bent allowing some turning of the brake 
mechanism.  The bolt was replaced and minor repairs made to the woodwork.  This may 
have been the result of an inherent weakness that has developed over time in the bolt or 
the change in wind direction during the storm.  There was no evidence of lasting damage 
to the mill. 
 
The conservators returned to the mill to repair the automaton model of the mill and 
measure up in preparation for renewing the windmill governor belt, which was installed in 
June. 
 
2.2 Promoting access to collections and providing specialist knowledge and 

advice 
Our Curator of Natural Sciences, who normally makes a significant contribution to events 
held at the mill, started covering the role of South East Area Curator in April. For four days 
a week she has been managing the four sites in the area, including Bursledon Windmill, 
until the new area manager starts work. As well as this temporary role, she has found time 
to assist with the ‘Minibeasts at the Mill’ event.  
 
 
3  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  

3.1  Formal Education Provision 
There have been quite a few enquiries from schools, but no bookings for February to April. 
Schools seem to want to be able to buy flour and make bread as the follow-up to the visit 
so until the mill is producing flour again, schools are favouring other mill visits such as 
Winchester City Mill. However, there are bookings in place for the summer term and no 
doubt the usual harvest season bookings will come in for Sept and Oct. The CELO 
attended the Hampshire Primary History Teachers’ Conference and promoted the service 
to 68 teachers. The CELO has also been working on a bid to the Arts Council for a Writers 
in Residence project with schools which includes use of the windmill site to stimulate 
creative writing for key stages 2 to 4. 
School bookings are starting to be taken for the Autumn term. 
  

10



 
 

 
3.2  Better Life Chances 
 
Families: For February half term, the CELO organised Mill, Myth & Magic story telling 
workshops inside the windmill itself with storyteller Mike O’Leary. These attracted 33 
participants and were very atmospheric and enjoyable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For the Easter Holiday, the CELO, assisted by our wonderful volunteer Andrea Badkin, ran 
a drop-in family workshop outside normal opening hours called Spring Into Action on 6 
April. 31 people came along and enjoyed finding out about migration, hibernation, life 
cycles, animal babies etc, using real specimens from the natural science collections. They 
also undertook 2 trails – one spotting signs of spring and one a trail of clues around the 
grounds to find the lost baby bunny! They made woven caterpillars and ‘daffo-mills’ which 
were really popular. The activity benefitted from Hampshire Futures funding for family 
learning. Participants’ feedback was really positive and included: 
“Very ingenious. Great ideas and brilliant for kids to see and touch the animals.” 
“Well thought out family activities.” 
“The children now know about life cycles, eggs etc and have very much enjoyed 
themselves.” 
“Kids enjoyed the rabbit hunt and crafts.” 
 
 
 
 
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
  
The other Easter Holiday event was Miller’s Ark Easter Animals coming along for Easter 
Sunday. 137 people turned up to pet the baby animals despite Storm Katy! 
There was also another Special Sunday in March – all about Cogs and Gears for British 
Science Week. 
 
Adults: There was just one out-of-hours group visit in this period, which was a talk and 
tour for the Solent MG Owners’ Club on 23 March. 29 adults (and their sports cars) 
attended. 
 

  

  

11



 
 

Other out of hour’s bookings 
Two Beaver Scout groups are booked in for evening sessions at the mill in June and July.  
 

The CELO, Janet Wildman retired from the Hampshire Cultural Trust at the end of April. 
Elements of her post have been taken on by Rebecca Parrant, Cultural Engagement 
Manager for Schools. 
 

4    Marketing and Communications 

 
4.1 Print material 
A new edition of What’s On covering the period May to August 
and featuring Bursledon Windmill was delivered at the beginning 
of April. 12,500 copies were printed and it is now in circulation 
via our distributors, Brochure Connect, to TICs, libraries, 
museums, accommodation providers, educational 
establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc. 
 
4.2 Online marketing 
The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, featuring exhibitions and 
events from Bursledon, has been to sign ups on a new 
database. Subscribers now number over 2,500. We have 
promoted features such as Special Sundays, Might Mill Event 
and the Easter Activities on Social Media and the website.  
 
4.3 Research 
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at on an 
ongoing basis. These are profiled annually using Mosaic 
software and provide ongoing information on which groups of 
people are using and not using our services and how individual 
visitor profiles compare to the local area.  This feeds into the service and marketing 
planning processes.  
  
4.4 Social Media 
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at on an ongoing basis. These are 
profiled annually using Mosaic software and provide ongoing information on which groups 
of people are using and not using our services and how individual visitor profiles compare 
to the local area.  This feeds into the service and marketing planning processes.  
HCT Facebook now has over 2,600 “likes” and twitter nearly 3,800 followers. Events at 
Bursledon are promoted on both social media sites on an ongoing basis. 
 

2 March Bursledon Windmill Bags for Life grant awarded 

13 March Bursledon Windmill Science Week 

23 & 24 
March 

Bursledon Windmill Millers Ark 

5 April Bursledon Windmill Spring Activities 

11 May Bursledon Windmill Special Sundays (June to July) 

16 May Bursledon Windmill Minibeasts at the Mill 

5 April Bursledon Windmill Spring Activities 
 

 
Miller’s Ark featured in the news section of the Hampshire Cultural Trust’s website. 

12



 
 

 
 

“Baby bunnies, lambs, ducklings and chicks from Miller’s Ark will be making their 

way to Bursledon Windmill for a fun packed family day this Easter Sunday. 

There couldn’t be a more enjoyable and seasonal Easter Sunday outing than going 

to the beautiful windmill site to meet the Easter animals and taking a tour around 

the windmill itself…..” 

Big Theme: Royal Blood 2016  

The Royal Blood website including sign up area and What’s Ons for all upcoming events is 
now live. Although Bursledon Windmill doesn’t have an exhibition as such, we hope it will 
feature complementary activities and or events which we can promote and share. 
 
75,000 DL RB leaflets have been produced promoting all key exhibitions. 48,000 of these 
are being professionally distributed by Brochure Connect across Hampshire and the 
bordering counties (Berkshire, West Sussex, East Dorset, Wiltshire and Surrey) including 
date specific “blitzing” in key areas prior to regional events.  
 
A PR campaign has been embarked upon with our agency Carswell Gould. This includes 
Releases at the launch of major exhibitions (and also a co-ordinated Press event at the 
Stephen & Matilda re-enactment on 9 July alongside our partners Winchester Cathedral 
and The Great Hall. 
 
We have taken out Press adverts, including a feature wrap and strip, (we should also 
receive some editorial support alongside this paid advertising space) in Schools Out (May 
half term), Primary Times (back page summer half term), Defence of the Realm magazine 
and The View. 
 
For the first time this year our big theme has a media partnership with Wave FM. This 
includes On Air mentions of our events during round ups of what’s on locally (at least 3 
mentions per week for each of our 4 featured events), 2 features in e-shots to their 
customer database, a webpage on wave105.com (over 330,000 visitors per week), and 
specific targeted messaging via their Social Media channels throughout the partnership 
 
 
 

Christine Taylor 
June 2016 

 
 
  
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH MUSEUM / BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES  
 

05 JULY 2016 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 

 
 

Introduction 
 
In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council, the net cost of running Bursledon 
Windmill and Eastleigh Museum is shared between the partner authorities.   This report provides an update on the budget for 2015/16 and 
2016/17 (Appendix 1) and asks the committee to note the contents of the update, approve the budget for 2016/17 and decide if it wishes to 
take up BDO’s offer of a limited financial review.  The report recommends that the committee: 
 

1. Notes the actuals for 2015/16 and 2016/17 
2. Approves the budget for 2016/17 and 
3. Does not agree to take up the advertised services from BDO 

 
 
Description of  2015/16 Budget 
 
The 2015/16 budget for Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum provided in Appendix 1 reflects proposed partner contributions as follows:  
 
1. Venue Management - salaries 

Includes venue management and curatorship salaries and on costs. 
 

2. Venue Management - costs 
This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost based on the average costs 
during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.  Due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance 
will be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  Hampshire County Council will continue to pick 
up any such overspend in years where more work needs to be done. 

15

A
genda Item

 4



 
3. Public Programmes (exhibitions) 

This charge contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display development, transport, setting up and taking down, 
cases for local exhibitions, insurance, marketing and research relating to new exhibitions. 

 
4. Collections  

This charge contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections relating to Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum, 
organised within the disciplines of Archaeology, The Arts, Natural Sciences and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to 
store, manage and provide public access to these important collections and make them available to the local community in support of 
exhibitions, displays and activities. 
 

5. Better Life Chances 
The Better Life Chances team is responsible for the design, creation, marketing and delivery of participatory learning sessions for young 
people in school and family groups, as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, both within the 
museum and beyond in to the community.  The team will place greater emphasis on work with hard to reach people in the specialism of 
Older People, Young People, Schools and Community. 
 

6. Business Development 
Business development and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing functions include visitor research, targeted marketing 
campaigns, museum and What’s On leaflets, posters, website development, email marketing, advertising and media relations leading to 
free editorial and promotions. Business development provides strategic guidance and direction, monitors performance, levers funding 
from external sources including Renaissance and Arts Council, and liaises closely with senior councillors and officers where appropriate. 
 

These budget headings reflect the headings in the Venue Plans, making it easier to understand where money is being spent and how Bursledon 
Windmill and Eastleigh Museum directly benefit. The budget has been modelled to include staff increments and the 1% pay award. They also 
include more accurate projections in relation to VAT costs, the financial activity which will be included in the trading arm and projected income 
from gift aid (where applicable).  
 
In addition, we intend to report from time to time on external investment secured and/applied for, and in kind support generously received 
from volunteers, trustees, businesses and other individuals and/or organisations.   

16



 
Figures shown for 2016/17 are not end of year figures.   
 

 
Letter from BDO to the Committee 
 

A letter from BDO is attached.  This is advertising a limited assurance financial review service to the committee.  The audits that BDO carried 
out in the past on behalf of the Audit Commission, for small bodies are no longer necessary.  Audits used to cost the committees several 
hundred pounds per annum.  Hampshire Cultural Trust, as a charitable body, will submit audited accounts for the trust on an annual basis.  It is 
not clear what real benefit there would be to the committee of such a review.    
 

Recommendations 
  It is recommended that the committee: 

1) notes the 2015/16 and 2016/17 budget updates. 
2) approves the 2016/17 budget 
3) does not take up DBO’s advertisement of financial services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Eastleigh Museum 
 
Expenditure 

Budget 
2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 

£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

3 

Actuals 
31 May  

£ 

 Bursledon Windmill 
 
Expenditure 

Budget 
2015/16 
£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 
£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

£ 

Actuals 
31 May 

£ 

Venue - salaries 9,663 9,648 9,759 1,626  Venue - salaries 31,301 26,763 27,030 4,505 

Venue Management* 19,264 16,605 18,061 2,047  Venue Management* 7,500 6,383 6,500 1,279 

Public Programmes 18,433 18,433 18,433 3,072  Public Programmes 4,608 4,608 4,608 768 

Collections 45,421 45,421 45,421 7,570  Collections 11,355 11,355 11,355 1,892 

Better Life Chances 24,431 24,431 24,431 4,072  Better Life Chances 24,431 24,431 24,431 4,072 

Business Dev 22,577 22,577 22,577 3,762  Business Dev 22,577 22,577 22,577 3,762 

Total Expenditure 139,789 137,115 138,682 22,149  Total Expenditure 101,772 96,117 96,501 16,278 

Income 6,695 5,317 5,919 0  Income 6,695 5,791 5,716 236 

Net Expenditure 133,094 131,789 132,763 22,149  Net Expenditure 95,077 90,326 90,785 16,042 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Net Expenditure Budget 
2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 

£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

£ 

Actuals 31 
May 

£ 

Eastleigh Museum 133,094 131,789 132,763 22,149 

Bursledon Windmill 95,077 90,326 90,785 16,042 

Total Net Expenditure 228,171 222,115 223,548 38,191 

     

Income Budget 
2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 

£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

 £ 

Actuals 31 
May 

£ 

Hampshire Cultural Trust 
EBC Eastleigh Museum  
EBC Windmill 
BPC Windmill 

167,771 
30,000 
27,728 

2,672 

161,715 
30,000 
27,728 

2,672 

167,169 
30,000 
23,707 

2,672 

22,149 
0 
0 
0 

Total Income 228,171 222,115 223,548 22,149 

 
Excludes all central costs provided within HCT such as Finance, HR, IT, Administration and Legal Services which equates to an estimated cost of 
£36,431. 
*This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance costs based on the average actual costs 
during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14 (due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will 
be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  HCT/HCC will continue to pick up any overspend in 
years when the work needs to be done. 

19



 

20



21



This page is intentionally left blank



Update on Bursledon Windmill Business Plan Presented in February 2016 

(Updates in bold within sections) 

 

 

Bursledon Windmill 

 

Business Plan 2016-19 

 

Background 

Over the last few years, in order to fix the broken windshaft, Heritage Lottery Funding grant 

assistance was sought and received.  The windshaft was replaced and the Windmill is now back in 

service.  Other remedial works were carried out as part of fitting the windshaft.  Further detailed 

work to iron out teething troubles and to improve safety in operating the mill is on going.  The HLF 

grant also paid for improvement in interpretation to make the offer at the mill more accessible and 

appealing. 

A toilet and small volunteer room, part funded by HLF, is currently being built as part of this plan, 

with additional funding from EBC.  This will enhance the attractiveness of the site both to volunteers 

towards maximising the support needed to run the site, and to schools and other groups who 

require better facilities to serve their clientele.  

With a reduction in staffing through re-organisation of the Museums Service whilst within HCC, the 

Windmill cannot move to a more sustainable position with reliance on HCC, now HCT staff alone.  It 

requires the impact of the wider development of the trust business planning to provide a stronger 

platform for development of the Windmill along with greater community involvement to more fully 

utilise the potential of the site. 

Funding proposed by HCC for the trust and EBC for the Windmill will reduce over the coming years.  

Proposed EBC funding will reduce by c45% (£26.3K to £14.5K) by 19/20.  HCC does not fund the 

Windmill directly, but rather funds HCT in order for HCT to run all of its operations.  Funding from 

HCC will reduce by 2%, 2%, 10%, 2% over the next 4 years (£3.15m to £2.66m).  HCT sees the 

strategy for future funding of the Windmill as dependent primarily on the trust’s overarching 

fundraising plans more than on local developments, as the return on investment from more global 

plans is likely to be significantly greater, than through local development.  

 

Trust Business Planning 

In order to deal with the reduced funding from its core partners as well as from local partners such 

as EBC, the trust has plans that will broaden its funding base towards providing a sustainable way 

forward for its current offer.  This approach is considered the best way to safeguard the trust’s 

current offer, and indeed to help to renew where the opportunity exists to make it more fit for 

purpose for the future.  It must do this with ambition, skill and some element of faith.   A plan that 

23

Agenda Item 5



does not show ambition and that merely accepts the reductions in public funding as a fait accompli 

will inevitably result in reduced strength to the cultural offer.   

Trust Business Planning will rely on local developments where there are strong local partnerships 

with the ambition to transform facilities.  But it must also rely on the development of more strategic 

income opportunities.  Although the trust is a new organisation, it has already embarked on 

ambitious plans to broaden its funding base as a way to safeguard its offer.  It already has reason to 

be confident that this approach will succeed as it has made strides in all of the relevant areas of its 

plan. 

  Currently, the trust is working on plans to broaden its funding base via: 

 Corporate Partners and Ambassadors  

 Better Life Chances, Happenings and Trusts and Foundations 

 Donations and Gift Aid 

 Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy 

The return on investment that can benefit the Windmill is likely to be far stronger from these 

streams and provides a plan to sustain the operation of the site.  This business plan can only 

reference these strands of work in broad terms as specific targets and successes can be 

commercially or partnership sensitive.  Nevertheless, details are provided where the information is 

public or not considered sensitive.  

 

 Corporate Partners and Ambassadors 

In its first year, HCT has welcomed 3 corporate partners, and 38 ambassadors.  These companies and 

individuals have given substantial amounts of money in support of the trust and its aims.  The trust 

expects this new area of funding to grow significantly over the coming years.  Partners have different 

interests but the Windmill as a unique heritage site is a prominent attraction to would be partners.  

HCT Culture Cards also provide an increasing source of income to benefit the trust and all its 

activities.      

Update:  Since launching the scheme in April 2015, the trust has raised around £70,000 from 

Corporate and Ambassador sponsorship. This is a fantastic start to a new programme and we are 

rapidly growing our donor base allowing us to develop an innovative individual giving strategy. We 

have had a really positive start to the new financial year 16/17; securing an additional Corporate 

partner and increasing our donor pool by 5%, receiving over £13,000 in donations. The trust is 

working on an exciting programme of fundraising events and is on track to meet its ambitious 

targets for 2020.   

 

Better Life Chances, Happenings, Trusts & Foundations 

Better Life Chances is a major strand of work for the trust.  It signals a different approach to 

engagement with targeted communities and will look to a more global view of funding and 

fundraising.  In the past 2 months, this strand of work has received 3 grants from external bodies 

(Paul Hamlyn Foundation, HIOW Community Rehabilitation Company and HLF Young Roots) totalling 

over £400,000.  All of these grants will help us to develop various venues and to fund posts.  None 

are specific to the Windmill but there are opportunities for the Windmill to benefit from these and  

other applications can be specifically targeted to work at the mill.  These are examples of a 

24



fundraising strategy that can bring returns from a wider view that simply looking locally, site by site 

for the solution to the future funding equation.    

Update: Better Life Chances has received 2 more funding awards in the past few months.  These 

include an Arts Council award of £80,000 primarily for work with schools in north Hampshire.  

However, this project is likely to generate an excess of funds for this work and will be able to use 

its methodology and learning for work with schools around the county, including in Eastleigh. 

 

Horizon 2020 is set to begin in September.  This will include work with The Bridge Education 

Centre for 1 full day per week for the next 4 years, involving their young people in arts and cultural 

activity in order to raise young people’s attainment, confidence and skills.  A programme of CPD 

for teaching staff will also upskill the Centres’ work in arts and culture.  This project involves all 7 

Education Centres in Hampshire and has a major research evaluation project running alongside it.  

The project aims to prove the ongoing need for arts and cultural interventions in the Education 

Centres long term, as a major force in the engagement of young people out of mainstream 

education.  The direct investment in Eastleigh will be worth around £85,000, one seventh of a 

£600,000 project, funded by Paul Hamlyn Foundation and Hampshire Cultural Trust.  

The partnership project with HIOW Community Rehabilitation Company (ex-Probation Service) 

begins in July.  This project will take offenders aged 18-25 on a challenging drama based course 

over the summer months.  This project will use the arts as a way to help rehabilitate offenders 

from the south of the county including Eastleigh, back into mainstream society.  There may be 

opportunities for those involved to find further opportunities with the trust including volunteering 

at the Windmill.     

Happenings is a programme of events that will take place in various locations around the county 

over the coming years.  These events will encourage people to take part in unusual events in unusual 

places.  The events will often meet the local agendas of partner authorities and local organisations.  

Already, partnership Happenings have taken place in Winchester, Fareham and Basingstoke and a 

major festival is being planned for 2020.  These events can bring in substantial external investment 

that can benefit sites beyond the events themselves.  An example is an Escape Room that has been 

running in Fareham since before Christmas 2015 and has drawn people to a shopping destination 

that was struggling.  It has already attracted several hundred participants and taken several 

thousand pounds in income.  This is just an example of creative Initiatives that could become 

features at the mill and generate both visitor numbers and income from external sources. 

Update:  European funding has been applied for, for partnership work on festival happenings 

around the county in the lead up to 2020.  These events may happen in any locations, particularly 

where there are vibrant cultural programmes to liaise with. 

ACE Kick Start funding of c£300,000 has provided the trust with funding to develop a number of 

strands of work.  These include delivering against national and international ambitions in developing 

Big Themes, which will produce large scale exhibitions and events to benefit a range of trust venues; 

Culture Stops that will help connect museums with the wider creative economy including working 

with creative practitioners, and making retail and café improvements to a number of venues and 

Creative Collections will investigate how the collection can best be used to develop commercial 

advantage.  

25



Update:  As part of the Culture Stops project, in this financial year we will improve the retail offer 

at the Windmill, introducing better ranges and more products for the Hampshire Fare community. 

We will also investigate the viability of selling good quality hot drinks on site. The Director of 

Mozzo Coffee which is based in Southampton, will visit the mill in the coming weeks to provide an 

expert assessment and make recommendations. In addition the new Chief Operating Officer for 

the trust, Paul Sapwell, starts on the 1 August and he has significant experience in the food and 

beverage sector; the new Head of Experience and Business Development has a strong background 

in the heritage retail sector.  Staff from the mill have benefited from the World Host Training on 

improving customer care skills provided through the Kick Start project. 

 

 Donations and Gift Aid 

The trust will introduce new mechanisms to promote greater individual giving at sites and gift aid in 

order to increase these by almost double over the next 4 years.  These will include increased 

opportunities for customers to donate as well as better information and encouragement for 

customers to give. 

Update:  HCT has created a new donations strategy which aligns with the creation of the new Gift 

Aid collateral, and the need for clear messaging, taking the opportunity to create new posters, 

donation box wraps and donations envelopes. This strategy will include: 

 Overall donations strategy for the trust 

 Gift Aid strategy for admission paying sites 

 Gift Aid strategy for non-paying sites 

Marketing colleagues are working on a new streamlined process for Gift Aid and hope to 
encourage further promotions in the new year.  The trust has just signed up with the National 
Fundraising Scheme and is able to take donations on line and via SMS. The trust is also in the 
process of reviewing CRM/ticketing systems that will enable a donor management 
programme.  Once this is in place we will promote online giving through all appropriate 
fundraising and marketing literature, driving prospects to our website.   

 

Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy (ICP) 

HCT is already in receipt of a significant external grant from Heritage Lottery Fund (c£900,000 over 3 

years) to enable it, along with the wider sector, to develop inward investment from philanthropic 

sources.  HCT is awaiting a decision on further funding of c£150,000 to continue this work.  This 

project aims to put both HCT and other partners in close contacts with potential givers of major 

sources of funding.  There are various signs already that this can be an effective way of encouraging 

giving to support HCT and the wider cultural sector.  

Update: ICP has played a key role in the development of essential fundraising skills and training 

for HCT and a broad range of the heritage sector across Hampshire. This will be integral to 

harnessing key skills and experience across the sector to allow a greater fundraising return and 

establishing effective and long term plans moving forwards.     

 

 

26



Local Windmill Plans 

Volunteer Development 

HCT is planning a programme of volunteer development that will both more closely align volunteers 

to the aims of the trust by seeking to make better use of their skills and experience, and supporting 

them in developing their customer care skills and technical skills.  This will be a trust wide initiative 

that will happen through 2016/17. 

The volunteer room will hopefully have a significant impact on the trust’s ability to attract volunteers 

as it will provide shelter and comfort that hasn’t been available on what can be a cold and desolate 

site for much of the year.   

Update:  See Curator’s Report. 

Milling 

Contact with other milling groups has been productive in raising the possibility of skilled millers from 

other sites being willing and available to give time to Bursledon.  In order to move this on, we must 

first investigate getting the site prepared for food production.  Erica has been giving time to this in 

recent months and this will move on in 16/17.  It’s hard to say when we can mill as it depends on 

who can be recruited when, but this will be an aim in 16/17. 

Update:  Cerian Trevan has recently started with us as the Community Museums Curator for the 

South East of Hampshire.  Cerian is picking up the trail of flour production and will report further 

on this in the coming months.  Gary Freeman, our miller, has been awaiting the right conditions 

for flour production and has produced the mill’s first flour for some time.  The possibility of 

producing flour for sale is being investigated by Cerian at the moment. 

Windmill KPIs 

The Windmill, along with other trust run facilities, is working to Key Performance Indicators in order 

to ensure that its performance is sustainable.  As funding from HCC and EBC reduces, HCT will meet 

this shortfall via the range of strategies outlined in the sections above.  The shortfall at the Windmill 

is modest compared to that of a range of other sites, and is therefore is not considered high risk.   

Local strategies such as increasing admission charges, improved retail and support from new trust 

staff such as Visitor Experiences Manager, Visitor Experience and Business Development Manager 

will support development at the site. 

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Visitor Nos 3,200 3,300 3,400 

Income £ £ £ 

Admissions 6,300 6,500 6,700 

Retail 400 400 500 

Total Income 6,700 6,900 7,200 

EBC 23,707 21,337 18,136 

BPC 2,672 2,672 2,672 

HCT/HCC 52,098 54,505 57,322 

Total 95,077 95,614 95,930 

Expenditure 95,077 95,614 95,930 

Nett Expenditure 0 0 0 

 

27



Bursledon Windmill will continue to be supported by HCT as part of its portfolio.  However it is 

important to recognise that this on going support will be enable by wider trust strategies for future 

funding rather than looking at the Windmill in isolation.  The journey to utilise the mill to its full 

potential is not straightforward and the future support of EBC and BPC along with the wider trust 

fundraising strategy will give this plan the best chance of success. 

Update:  In order to boost visitor numbers and secondary spend, we are trialling opening the mill 

for Saturdays and Sundays in the summer months and closing in the height of winter, when visitor 

numbers drop off.  Along with improvements in café and retail, and the appointment of new posts 

that have greater retail and catering expertise, the foundations are being laid to increase visitor 

numbers and income.  

28


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Finance Report
	JMC BDO Letter Financial Report 2016-17

	5 Business Plan Update

